Approved: <u>March 1, 2010</u>

Date

MINUTES OF THE HOUSE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND TOURISM COMMITTEE

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Lana Gordon at 3:30 p.m. on February 24, 2010, in Room 152-S of the Capitol.

All members were present except:

Representative Lisa Benlon- excused Representative Sharon Schwartz- excused

Committee staff present:

Jason Long, Office of the Revisor of Statutes Doug Taylor, Office of the Revisor of Statutes Reed Holwegner, Kansas Legislative Research Department Brandon Riffel, Kansas Legislative Research Department Ann Deitcher, Committee Assistant

Conferees appearing before the Committee: Tom Thornton, President and CEO, Kansas Bioscience Authority

The Chair thanked Representative Myers for fulfilling the role as Committee Vice-Chair in the absence of Representative Donohoe. She then recognized Representative Donohoe, welcoming his return to the Committee.

Tom Thornton was introduced and gave a progress report on the Kansas Bioscience Authority for 2009 commending the Committee for their "bold vision" in establishing the KBA. (<u>Attachment 1</u>). Saying that this report was very important to the Authority because it was one of the important tools they use to continually mark progress in this bold effort to advance Kansas' national bioscience leadership. He said that they were no longer aspiring to bioscience leadership but driving it.

As evidence of their "abundant" success, Mr. Thornton told the Committee that in 2009, a national site selection magazine once again highlighted the strength of Kansas' bioscience economy. In 2008 Kansas ranked as the 10th most vibrant bioscience economy in the nation and in 2009 moved up to 9th alongside California, Massachusetts and Illinois.

Saying that Kansas was officially selected as the home of the \$650 million National Bio and Agro-Defense Facility, he said this will have a \$3.65 billion economic impact as it becomes the world's preeminent research center to protect the food supply and agriculture economy.

Mr. Thornton told the Committee that the realized outcomes of the KBA's investments in bioscience companies and research organizations are growing as well. Through January 2010, KBA investments have had a cumulative impact of 1,171 new jobs, \$112.2 million in new capital investment, \$47 million in hew research funding, \$30.4 million in new equity investments in bioscience startup companies and an estimated \$75.7 million in new wages. The result of this is a \$7.52 return to the state's economy for each \$1 invested by the KBA.

Questions and answers followed.

The Chair announced the Sub-Committee meeting would be held on Monday, March 1.

The meeting was adjourned at 4.25 a.m.

The next meeting is scheduled for March 3, 2010.

Testimony of Tom Thornton

, Ç

President and Chief Executive Officer, Kansas Bioscience Authority Hearing of the House Economic Development and Tourism Committee February 24, 2010

Chairwoman Gordon, Vice Chairman Donohoe, members of the Committee, thank you for your invitation to address this distinguished panel on the tremendous progress Kansas is making in its pursuit of economic growth through national bioscience leadership.

Due to the visionary Kansas Economic Growth Act of 2004, which created the Kansas Bioscience Authority, *Kansas has been able to vault ahead in bioscience* as other states have pulled back from innovation investments.

Just last month we were in Topeka to deliver the Kansas Bioscience Authority's annual progress report. This report is very important to us because transparency is a core KBA operating principle, and the report is also one of the important tools we use to continually mark progress in this bold effort to advance Kansas' national bioscience leadership.

As we worked to prepare the 2009 progress report, a key message came through loud and clear: KBA investments are already generating significant and measurable outcomes, and we are fulfilling the vision of the Kansas Economic Growth Act to accelerate innovation and position this state to address global bioscience challenges.

Simply put, we are realizing the bold vision that the Kansas Legislature established when the KBA was created. No longer are we aspiring to bioscience leadership...we're driving it.

Our research base is expanding. We have asserted ourselves as a national leader in key bioscience clusters. Kansas entrepreneurs are developing cutting edge products to fight cancer and address other health care challenges. Foreign companies and researchers are moving to Kansas. Investors nationally are betting on Kansas companies.

The evidence of our success is abundant, and the excitement all over Kansas is real:

- In 2009, a national site selection magazine once again highlighted the strength of Kansas' bioscience economy. In 2008, we ranked as the 10th most vibrant bioscience economy in the nation. In 2009, we moved up to 9th, alongside powerhouses such as California, Massachusetts, and Illinois. Consider, this: we rank 32nd in terms of the size of our overall economy, but *Business Facilities* ranked us 9th for overall biotechnology strength. That's a point of pride for us all and through our investments we are committed to improving that position.
- Kansas was officially selected as the home of the \$650 million National Bio and Agro-Defense Facility, which will have a \$3.65 billion economic impact as it becomes the world's preeminent research center to protect the food supply and agriculture economy. The magnetic affect of this designation was felt quickly when a

Economic Development & Tou Date: $2 - 2 4 - 10$	ırism
Date: $2 - 24 - 10$	
Attachment # <u>/ - /</u>	

second federal research lab, the Arthropod Borne Animal Disease Research Lab (ABADRL), announced it would relocate to Kansas to accelerate its research efforts. And just last week our state's leadership in animal disease research has once again been recognized, this time with a \$12 million U.S. Department of Homeland Security award for a Center of Excellence for Emerging and Zoonotic Animal Disease (CEEZAD), located at Kansas State University.

This award is another victory in our explicit strategy to leverage our state's research assets and infrastructure to develop and commercialize animal disease products to protect American agriculture. Simply put, this new center shows we are making progress to leverage the NBAF victory and reap economic outcomes many times that of NBAF's estimated impact of \$3.65 billion over 20 years.

• The realized outcomes of the KBA's investments in bioscience companies and research organizations are growing as well. Through January 2010, KBA investments have had a cumulative impact of 1,171 new jobs, \$112.2 million in new capital investment, \$47 million in new research funding, \$30.4 million in new equity investments in bioscience startup companies, and an estimated \$76.7 million in new wages.

The result: A \$7.52 return to the state's economy for each \$1 invested by the KBA. And as more milestones are achieved by companies and researchers, the projected outcomes associated with existing investments will rise dramatically in the coming years to 5,035 new jobs, \$1.2 billion in capital investment, \$234.1 million in new research funding, and an estimated \$329.6 million in wages.

Many states, including our neighbor to the east, are trying to figure out Kansas' secret sauce and develop their own KBA-like entities. Our strategy is straightforward: we focus in areas of strength where we can win; resist a peanut butter approach; leverage our research assets; and emphasize getting the products of research to the market.

By setting clear priorities and pulling together a range of public and private partners, Kansas has established a new way of doing business — and it's working.

At the Kansas Bioscience Authority, 2009 was an exciting year filled with remarkable results. The question is no longer, "Can this work?" The question has become, "Just how big will this get?!"

The Vision of the Kansas Economic Growth Act

With that brief update, let me take a moment to step back and give some perspective on how we've gotten to where we are today.

The bold vision of the Kansas Economic Growth Act was to create a unique, stable, and non-politicized funding mechanism that would allow the KBA to invest in gamechanging opportunities and pursue nothing less than national bioscience leadership. The act also provided for a substantial sum of funding before sunsetting. The \$581 million investment was designed to enable Kansas *not just to dabble in bioscience* but to truly pursue national leadership in five areas of strength in our state: animal health, bioenergy, biomaterials, human health, and plant biology.

The KBA funding mechanism has the following unique features:

- The state general fund receives \$85.6 million (the baseline), plus 5% of any growth above the baseline before the KBA receives any transfers.
- The KBA funding mechanism has built-in accountability: (1) we don't receive funds unless the biosciences sectors are expanding; and (2) the returns of KBA investments fund additional KBA investments.
- As the NBAF example shows, the funding mechanism allows the KBA to pursue aggressively game-changing investments that require quick action and multi-year commitments.

The unique funding mechanism matched by our diligent focus make the KBA a very powerful tool for the state's continued economic development. In many ways the KBA operates like a venture capital fund:

- 1. The KBA's investments are **focused**. The KBA is focusing in key clusters, like animal health, drug discovery, bioenergy and biomaterials, in which Kansas has the opportunity for undisputed national leadership.
- 2. The KBA **diversifies**: We emphasize research, commercialization and expansion. No one of these alone will get us to national leadership. We must invest in each, and each supports the other.
- 3. KBA investments are **game-changing**: Every investment we make must get us closer to undisputed national leadership.
- 4. The KBA investment process is highly **evaluative**: Each application is subject to a rigorous evaluation by KBA staff and the board of directors.
- 5. The KBA serves as a **strategic partner**: We are not a fire-and-forget organization. The KBA is committed to provide strategic assistance to every investment we make to ensure its ultimate success.
- 6. The KBA is oriented around **outcomes**: We expect a return on investments for the state, measured by such factors as increased federal R&D investment, venture capital investment, and job creation.

This is an approach that has been hailed across the country as a model for success, and it is certainly a program that is the envy of many states as they try to play catch up with Kansas.

Most importantly, it's a visionary approach that is working for the Kansas economy!

Coming to a Crossroads

Despite the remarkable success of KBA investments, it has been understandable in these challenging economic times that funding caps were imposed on the KBA in FY 2009 and 2010. Those caps over two years reduced transfers to the KBA by \$37 million.

As a result, the KBA has cut its program spending by \$38.9 million causing a reduction in the number of centers of innovation we considered for funding; bonding of the Venture Accelerator instead of cash payments; elimination of the Business Investment Incentive Program; and reductions to the Eminent Scholar, Rising Star and other programs.

Now there is consideration of continuing the funding cap in FY 2011, which would reduce estimated transfers to the KBA by another \$35 million, for a total of \$72 million over three years. *That's a 41 percent reduction in three years*.

In that context, we must be very honest with ourselves this year. If a funding cap is imposed at \$35 million for a third consecutive year, it will set an unmistakable pattern deviating significantly from the funding mechanism created by a visionary law.

As a result, prudent planning and management will require us to shorten our investment horizon and dramatically limit new funding commitments.

What does that mean?

Sustained caps and the uncertainty they bring will require the KBA to change the execution of its investment strategy and the core nature of what we are able to accomplish. Essentially, it will be mandatory for the KBA to tighten its investment focus around a smaller number of priorities. We will need to choose which of our five areas of bioscience strength we can continue to pursue in a game-changing way that will benefit the economy most.

With a third year of funding caps, it will be difficult to continue our pace of investment in the Eminent Scholar program, the Kansas Bioscience Centers of Innovation, the cancer fighting cures initiative, and efforts to maximize the economic impact of the NBAF.

There would be no flexibility to pursue additional large-scale projects on the order of the NBAF.

Sustained caps will result in an ever-increasing percentage of annual KBA expenditures devoted to meeting existing commitments — and a corresponding reduction of new investments that can drive economic growth.

We will be letting off the accelerator at a key moment of extraordinary momentum and just when our impact is needed most.

Bioscience leading the state's economic recovery

There is much to be optimistic about. There's no doubt our state's hard work and commitment to bioscience has paid off — yet this success was not inevitable or by accident.

I want to first congratulate the Legislature for having the foresight to lay the foundation for a 21st century economy, a bioscience foundation that today can lead the state's economic recovery.

I also encourage your continued commitment to the vision of the Kansas Economic Growth Act so we keep the momentum going and add a strong, fourth leg to the Kansas economy. We can do this by:

- *Creating an environment for bioscience entrepreneurs to succeed in Kansas:* Kansas' economic recovery will be led by innovative bioscience companies all across the state that are developing and producing new innovations, creating new jobs, attracting capital, and producing wealth.
- Linking research and industry to develop nationally prominent bioscience industry clusters: The KBA's Kansas Bioscience Centers of Innovation will be key here as we ensure that companies in the state's key bioscience clusters have access to the innovations and talent they need to develop new products, create jobs and expand in Kansas.
- *Remain focused on getting the NBAF built and maximizing its multiplier effect:* We must remain focused and committed to getting the NBAF built and work now to maximize the extraordinary opportunities afforded by this seminal victory. Starting in FY 2011, over 1,500 men and women from all over our state will go work to build the facility, which will have a total economic impact in the state of over \$3.6 billion over 20 years. And by working to initiate the NBAF mission now, by facilitating university/industry research collaborations, by supporting the growth of startups, and recruiting companies to the region, we can and should be able to double that figure to over \$7 billion.
- **Bringing cutting-edge cancer treatments closer to home:** With cancer as one of the nation's great bioscience challenges, we have begun investing heavily in the state's drug development capabilities to increase Kansas' strength in this critical human health sector. One way we are doing that is with a significant commitment to the University of Kansas' multi-year effort to dramatically expand its renowned pharmaceutical strengths. This effort, which includes partners across the state, will bring cutting-edge treatments closer to home for Kansans, share Kansas' unique cancer-fighting capabilities with the nation and generate real economic growth.

The mantle of national and even international bioscience leadership is within grasp. As other states pull back from innovation investments, Kansas has the rare opportunity to stay the course and vault further ahead, accelerating our economic recovery and yielding benefits in improved health and economic growth for decades to come.

Thank you.